
CITY OF RICHARDSON 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on September 19, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. at the Richardson 

ISD Administration Building, 400 S. Greenville Avenue, Richardson, TX 75081. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bryan Marsh, Chairman 

  Kenneth Southard, Vice Chairman 

  Nate Roberts, Commissioner 

  Gary Beach, Commissioner 

  Sebrena Bohnsack, Commissioner 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Byron Purdy, Commissioner 

  Joe Costantino, Commissioner  

  Gwen Walraven, Commissioner 

  Michael Keller, Commissioner 

 

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Chris Shacklett, Asst. Director of Development Svcs. – Planning 

Dan Tracy, Asst. Director of Development Svcs – Development 

& Engineering 

  Derica Peters, Senior Planner 

  Aaron Zilz, Planner II 

  Anna Jo Castaneda, Executive Secretary 

  Alayna Pangus, Administrative Secretary 

 

BRIEFING SESSION 

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff 

regarding staff reports and agenda items. No action was taken. 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

 

1. Approval of Minutes of the regular business meeting of September 5, 2023. 

 

Motion:       Vice Chairman Southard made a motion to approve the minutes as  

presented. Seconded by Commissioner Bohnsack. Motion passed 5-0. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan 

Commission and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate 

discussion of these items unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the 

Consent Agenda for separate consideration. 

 

2. Replat – Spring Valley Business Park Addition Lot 1A, Block B: Consider and act on a request for 

approval of a replat of Lot 1, Block B of Spring Valley Business Park Addition to abandon easements 

and dedicate easements and right-of-way to accommodate a proposed multi-family development. The 

3.78-acre tract of land is located at 111 W. Spring Valley Road, at the southeast corner of W. Spring 

Valley Road and S. Sherman Street. Property Owner: Lang Spring Valley, LLC. Staff: Aaron Zilz. 

 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

September 19, 2023  2 

 

Motion: Commissioner Bohnsack made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as 

presented. Seconded by Commissioner Roberts.  Motion Passed 5-0. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
3. Zoning File 23-09 – Planned Development & Special Permit – Clearwater Express: 

Consider and act on a request to rezone 3.4 acres located at 524 and 528 Centennial Boulevard, 

on the south side of Centennial Boulevard, west of Audelia Road, from PD Planned 

Development for the O/C Office/Commercial District with modified development standards to 

PD Planned Development for the O/C Office/Commercial District with modified development 

standards for a revised concept plan and for approval of a Special Permit for a carwash. 

Property Owner: Sreelakshmi Tinnanooru, Vensha Group Property, LLC and Tim Hughes, 

Centennial Blvd LP. Staff: Derica Peters. 

 

Ms. Peters began by stating the subject property was zoned PD Planned Development for the 

O/C Office/Commercial District with modified development standards per Ordinance 4266. 

The adjacent properties have been developed with a mix of commercial uses. The subject 

property is part of the original Town of Buckingham and is regulated by the Buckingham Area 

Zoning Ordinance. In 2018, the zoning on the subject properties was modified to allow the 

western lot to be developed as a childcare center on a lot without frontage (Tract 1) and to 

allow the eastern lot (Tract 2) to be developed as a flag lot. Tract 1 has been developed with a 

10,000-square foot, single story childcare center. Tract 2 is an undeveloped lot, however, the 

approved concept plan reflected a 22,000-square foot office or commercial building. 

 

Ms. Peters stated the applicant has requested to rezone the property to provide a revised concept 

plan reflecting a carwash on Tract 2. The applicant has proposed a 1-story, 4,954-square foot 

carwash building with a drive-through wash tunnel and (20) covered vacuum bays. There 

would be no exterior mechanical equipment. There will be four (4) employees, and the 

proposed hours of operation are 7:30 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. during the summer and 7:30 a.m. to 

7:00 p.m. during the winter. 

 

Ms. Peters presented an exhibit that demonstrated how cars would enter the site, circulate 

through the payment station and wash tunnel, and then exit the site or circulate into the vacuum 

bay area. The Buckingham Area Zoning Ordinance does not provide a parking ratio for a 

carwash. Staff requested the applicant to provide parking for the office use at the Code required 

parking ratio of one (1) space per 333 square feet. The building contains a 273-square foot 

office; the applicant stated they would provide five (5) parking spaces on site to accommodate 

their employees. 

 

Ms. Peters stated a 4-foot-tall evergreen shrub row would be planted along the west property 

line to provide a buffer between the vehicle queuing area and the childcare center to the west. 

The applicant stated it takes a vehicle approximately 2.5 minutes to exit the wash tunnel once 

the customer has paid at the pay station. During peak hours there would be an estimated seventy 

(70) vehicles being washed in an hour. Staff reviewed the applicant’s proposed trip generation 

and determined no additional traffic studies were necessary. The most recently approved 

Special Permit for a carwash was at the southeast corner of Campbell Road and Plano Road. 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

September 19, 2023  3 

 

The carwash is a similar self-service carwash facility that provides fourteen (14) vacuum bays 

and four (4) parking spaces. 

 

Ms. Peters presented the approved childcare center elevations which would continue to be part 

of the PD ordinance; no modifications were proposed to the existing building. She also 

presented the proposed building elevations for the carwash. She stated the building height 

would be 29.5 feet tall. The building would be constructed of beige and gray split-face CMU 

with metal trim and cast stone accents. She also presented a detail of the pay station canopy 

and vacuum bay canopies. She discussed the architectural features and windows located on the 

east and west sides of the building. Ms. Peters also presented site photos of the subject property 

and surrounding properties. 

 

Ms. Peters provided a summary of the request and the conditions to be included if the 

Commission recommended approval. 

 

Ms. Peters concluded her presentation stating staff received one (1) speaker card in opposition 

to this request. The opposition was not from an owner within the 200-foot notification area. 

Ms. Peters then made herself available for questions. 

 

With no questions of staff from the Commission, Chairman Marsh invited the applicant 

forward to present the request. 

 

Ms. Heather Rimmer, 4317 Marsh Ridge, Carrollton, Texas, representing Cross Development, 

came forward to address the Commission. 

 

Commissioner Roberts asked how much water would be used to wash seventy (70) vehicles 

per hour or how much water was used per vehicle. 

 

Ms. Rimmer stated she did not know specifically how many gallons of water was used for each 

vehicle. She stated the carwash uses water reclaim tanks so that water can be filtered and 

reused. 

 

Commissioner Roberts restated the question and asked about how much water would be used. 

 

Ms. Rimmer stated it depends on the volume of the wash, but the demand for water will be less 

than older carwashes. 

 

Vice Chairman Southard asked if Clearwater employees would monitor the activity in the 

vacuum bay areas. 

 

Ms. Rimmer stated a manager was always present along with employees guiding vehicles into 

the wash tunnel and employees in the vacuum bay area providing towels and window washing 

fluid. She also stated the carwash would be well lit and continually monitored during business 

hours. 

 

Vice Chairman Southard asked if Ms. Rimmer represented any other carwash operators. 

 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

September 19, 2023  4 

 

Ms. Rimmer stated she only represented Clearwater, and the closest location would be the 

recently opened location in McKinney; other locations included Cleburne and Terrell. 

 

Vice Chairman Southard asked how supplies were delivered. 

 

Ms. Rimmer stated supplies are delivered in smaller box trucks and the carwash has an 

equipment room to store supplies. 

 

Vice Chairman Southard asked if all the storage for vacuum compressors and filtration 

equipment was all located inside the building. 

 

Ms. Rimmer replied yes. 

 

Chairman Marsh asked if Clearwater would be the owner of the property if the zoning were 

approved. 

 

Ms. Rimmer stated they would be the owner. 

 

Chairman Marsh asked Ms. Rimmer if she was aware of any issues regarding access with the 

soccer fields to the south. 

 

Ms. Rimmer stated there were no access issues due to the multiple entry points and that they 

vetted the site by observing the soccer field to monitor the traffic flow. 

 

Chairman Marsh asked why they selected the site since there is no frontage on a major street. 

 

Ms. Rimmer stated that they look for synergy with other tenants such as being located near a 

grocery store. 

 

Vice Chairman Southard asked if they would share the existing monument along Centennial 

with the childcare center. 

 

Ms. Rimmer stated they would share the sign with the childcare center. 

 

Commissioner Beach asked how much fresh water the carwash would use in a day. He stated 

the water recycling was positive, but he was still concerned with how much water the carwash 

might use. 

 

Ms. Rimmer stated it depended on the volume, but the underground reclamation system, which 

costs $150,000, would reduce the amount of water usage. 

 

Vice Chairman Southard asked when construction would start and how long would it take if 

they were approved. 

 

Ms. Rimmer stated there was a 6-month building period and it would take six (6) weeks to 

prepare plans once the Special Permit was approved. She estimated the date to be in the Spring 

of 2024. She also stated that they use a 2-inch water meter. 

 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

September 19, 2023  5 

 

Chairman Marsh asked staff if they could comment on the size of the meter. 

 

Mr. Dan Tracy stated a 2-inch water meter was typical for a retail site. 

 

With no further questions for the applicant, Chairman Marsh opened the public hearing and 

asked if there was anyone who wished to speak in favor or opposition to the request. 

 

Seeing none, Chairman Marsh asked for a motion to close the public hearing. 

 

Vice Chairman Southard made a motion to close the public hearing. Commissioner Beach 

seconded the motion. Motion passed 5-0. 

 

Chairman Marsh stated he wanted to see the property developed. He did not see any carwashes 

in the immediate area. He felt the use was similar to the carwash at Campbell Road and Plano 

Road, and he did not anticipate any queuing issues. He also did not have concern with access 

around the site. 

 

Motion: Chairman Marsh made a motion to approve the request as presented. Vice 

Chairman Southard seconded the motion. Motion passed 3-2 (Commissioner Roberts and 

Commissioner Beach opposed). 

 

ADJOURN 

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Marsh adjourned the regular 

business meeting at 7:28 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Bryan Marsh, Chairman 

APPROVED




